Minutes For:

Orlando City Council June 5, 2017 2:00 P.M.



District 1	District 2	District 3	Mayor	District 4	District 5	District 6
Jim Gray	Tony Ortiz	Robert F. Stuart	Buddy Dyer	Patty Sheehan	Regina I. Hill	Samuel B. Ings

Opening

On Monday, June 5, 2017 the Orlando City Council met in regular session in City Council Chambers at City Hall. Mayor Dyer welcomed those in attendance and introduced the invocation and pledge of allegiance.

Invocation

The invocation was delivered by Michael Dippy, Executive Director, iDignity, 424 East Central Boulevard, Suite 199, Orlando 32801.

Pledge of Allegiance

The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Jim Gray.

Call to Order

Mayor Dyer officially called the meeting to order at 2:05 P.M. City Clerk Denise Aldridge called the roll and announced there was a quorum with all members present.

Present:

Mayor Buddy Dyer
Commissioner Jim Gray, District 1
Commissioner Tony Ortiz, District 2
Commissioner Robert F. Stuart, District 3
Commissioner Patty Sheehan, District 4
Commissioner Regina I. Hill, District 5
Commissioner Samuel B. Ings, District 6
City Clerk Denise Aldridge
Senior Assistant City Clerk Elizabeth Davidson
Chief Assistant City Attorney Kyle Shephard
Police Officers Kevlon Kirkpatrick and James West, Sergeants-at-Arms

Minutes

Commissioner Tony Ortiz moved and Commissioner Patty Sheehan seconded a motion to waive the reading of the May 15, 2017 Agenda Review and City Council meeting minutes and accept the minutes as written, and vote carried unanimously with minutes approved as written.

Awards/Presentations/Recognitions

Recognizing Rick Howard as American Public Works Association "Top Ten Public Works Leaders 2017"

Mayor Dyer called on Chief Administrative Office Byron Brooks who introduced Brian Usher, Public Works Director from the City of Largo, Florida and Past President of the American Public Works Association. Mr. Usher stated that the American Public Works Association selects ten recipients a year as a Top Ten Public Works Leader, considered to be the finest in their profession, and compared the award to a lifetime achievement. Rick Howard joined the City of Orlando in 1985 in the Streets and Drainage division and has

become a leader in the field in solid waste, reduction in fuel consumption by the City's fleet, water reclamation, water reuse, critical wetland management and stormwater utility operations. Mr. Howard has served in the American Public Works Association, Florida Engineering Society, American Society of Civil Engineers, American Society of Highway Engineers, Boy Scouts of America as Troop Chair, Assistant Scoutmaster and Council Committee member, and judged and captained the Dr. Nelson Ying Orange County Science Exposition at Rollins College. During his career, Rick has worked on the Lake Eola Fountain refurbishment, Orlando City Soccer Stadium, Amway Center, Camping World Stadium renovation and Dr. Phillips Performing Arts Center. Mr. Usher noted Rick's commitment to having stormwater systems fully sustainable in the next 12 years, the use of traffic management technology, roadway maintenance projects and general infrastructure maintenance. Mr. Usher presented Mr. Howard with the "Top Ten Public Works Leaders 2017" award.

Proclaiming June 12 as "Orlando United Day – A Day of Love and Kindness"

Mayor Dyer announced that on Monday, June 12, 2017 the Orlando community will stand together again to honor the memory of the 49 innocent lives lost one year ago at the Pulse nightclub and to support the families of the victims and survivors. The Orlando City Council and the Orange County Board of County Commissioners joined together to proclaim June 12 as "Orlando United Day – A Day of Love and Kindness" and each successive June 12 thereafter. Mayor Dyer noted there are a number of community events planned for June 12 and encouraged the community to participate in "Acts of Love and Kindness" – a homegrown movement led by the One Orlando Alliance with direct input from victims' families. For more information, please visit www.actlovegive.com. Mayor Dyer read the proclamation.

Mayor's Update Moment of Silence

Earlier today, violence touched the Central Florida region as five innocent people lost their lives at a business on North Forsyth Road. Mayor Dyer conveyed his thoughts and prayers to the families of the victims, the survivors and everyone impacted by this. Mayor Dyer expressed gratitude for the quick actions of the Orange County Sherriff's Office as deputies responded to the scene, and asked for a moment of silence to honor these victims, as well as the lives taken during the recent terrorist attacks in England.

Dr. Stuart Cowan, Chief Scientist with Smart Cities Council

Earlier this year Orlando was designated one of five Smart Cities by the Smart Cities Council, the world's largest smart cities network. Orlando was selected because of its commitment to using smart technologies to seek innovative ways to better connect with and meet the needs of residents. As part of this designation, the City will receive tailored guidance on how to further develop and implement a comprehensive approach to applying smart technologies in Orlando and throughout Central Florida. Mayor Dyer recognized Dr. Stuart Cowan, Chief Scientist with the Smart Cities Council, in attendance at today's meeting.

Agenda Items of Note

Item B-3 - First Amended Liquidating Plan of Reorganization of Debtor First One Hundred, LLC ("Plan"), which provides for the City to acquire ownership and control of six affordable housing projects conditioned upon delivery of marketable and insurable title and payment by City of \$700,000.00

This agenda item provides a mechanism for the City to acquire ownership and control of six apartment complexes, located along Orange Center Boulevard, which recently filed bankruptcy. The condition of the properties has been a concern to neighbors and this action will help to stabilize the neighborhoods by allowing the City to eventually partner with community development organizations interested in constructing sustainable, mixed-income housing that complement the surrounding neighborhoods.

Community Redevelopment Agency-1 – Ranking and Contract Negotiations for Design-Build Services for CRA Parramore Residential Housing, RFP17-0247

This agenda item will approve the rankings of design-build firms to build ten new single family homes in Parramore. The homes are expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2018 and, after construction is complete, the City will sell the homes to qualified, income-eligible homebuyers. This project further supports

the City's effort to increase housing opportunities in Parramore, and owner-occupant housing, and aligns with recommendations from the recently completed Parramore Comprehensive Neighborhood Plan.

Consent Agenda

Commissioner Jim Gray announced a conflict of interest concerning Ordinance No. 2017-26 (annexing and assigning the Residential Low Intensity future land use designation to property located east of Lake Baldwin Lane, south of Rixey Street, west of Jamajo Boulevard and north of Hargrave Street (Lake Baldwin 5) (Economic Development)) and Ordinance No. 2017-28 (designating certain land generally located south of Rixey Street, west of Jamajo Boulevard, east of Lake Baldwin Lane and north of Hargrove Street and comprised of 0.96 acres of land, more or less, as Planned Development Zoning District with the Aircraft Noise Overlay District on the City's Official Zoning Maps (Economic Development) (Lake Baldwin 5 PD, ZON2017-00003)) and will abstain from a vote on those items. Commissioner Gray filed Form 8B Memorandum of Voting Conflict, a copy of which is included as supplemental papers to this meeting.

Commissioner Patty Sheehan stated she does not have a conflict of interest on Item D-1 (John R. Mott Historical Marker at Lake Eola Park) and that was confirmed by Chief Assistant City Attorney Kyle Shephard.

Commissioner Sheehan announced events planned for June 12, A Day of Remembrance. One Orlando Collection and Digital Gallery, including the 49 Crosses, at Orange County History Center from 10:00 AM to 7:00 PM; Sea-to-Sea flag unveiling at Orange County Administration Center at 10:00 AM; Pulse Nightclub Public Community Gathering Reflections and Remembrance from 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM; Orlando Love: Remembering Our Angels at Lake Eola Park Amphitheater at 7:00 PM; and Pulse Nightclub Public Community Gathering Moments of Hope and Healing at 10:00 PM. For more information, please visit www.orlandounitedday.com.

Commissioner Samuel B. Ings moved and Commissioner Regina I. Hill seconded a motion to approve the consent agenda, and vote carried unanimously that the consent agenda be approved as follows.

(A) Mayor

- (1) Approving City Hall Use Application/Contract for 2017 "Savor the Night" event. Approved, filed and documentary #170605A01.
- (2) Confirming Citizen Advisory Board appointments/reappointments. Confirmed, filed and documentary #170605A02.

(B) Business and Financial Services

- (1) Approving lease of retail space at Library Garage (116 E. Central Blvd.) to Lake Eola Florist. Approved, filed and documentary **#170605B01**.
- (2) Accepting meeting minutes and adopting resolution to Amend FY 2016-2017 Budget May 9, 2017 Budget Review Committee (BRC) meeting. Accepted meeting minutes for filing by the City Clerk and adopted the resolution, filed and documentary #170605B02.
- (3) Approving First Amended Liquidating Plan of Reorganization of Debtor First One Hundred, LLC ("Plan"), which provides for the City to acquire ownership and control of six affordable housing projects conditioned upon delivery of marketable and insurable title and payment by City of \$700,000.00. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B03.
- (4) Approving Service Authorization #III for Professional Engineering Services on Conserv II Biosolids Dewatering System Improvements, RQS13-0458. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B04.
- (5) Approving Service Authorization #18166(2) for Professional Stormwater Engineering Services for East Lake Arnold Drainage Project, RQS15-0293-1. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B05.

- (6) Approving award to Triumvirate Environmental, Inc. for chemical spills remediation, IFB17-0021. Approved, filed and documentary **#170605B06**.
- (7) Approving award to Benson Construction Company for Dubsdread Sand Bunker Rebuild Project, IFB17-0249. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B07.
- (8) Approving 2017 Restrictive Covenant for Cultural Facility Grant at the Orlando Science Center. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B08.
- (9) Approving Use of Broward County Sheriff's Contract with Motorola Solutions Inc. for the purchase of Motorola radios, C17-0340. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B09.
- (10) Approving award to Hub City Ford-Mercury, Inc. d/b/a Hub City Ford, Inc. for the purchase of five (5) 2017 Ford Police Interceptor sedans, IFB17-0281. Approved, filed and documentary **#170605B10.**
- (11) Approving use of Orange County, Florida contract with Fisher Scientific, LLC for the purchase of self contained breathing apparatus (SCBA), C17-0348. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B11.
- (12) Approving use of Florida Sheriff's Association contract with Kenworth of Central Florida for the purchase of a Kenworth T880 truck with concrete mixer, C17-0349. Approved, filed and documentary **#170605B12.**
- (13) Approving use of HGACBuy Contract with Elxsi dba Cues, Inc. for the purchase of a Ford F750 high cube van with TV inspection system, C17-0350. Approved, filed and documentary #170605B13.

(C) Economic Development

- (1) Approving renewal of employment agreement for Plans Examiner II Mechanical Richard Daniels. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C01.
- (2) Accepting meeting minutes and approving the actions of the Historic Preservation Board May 3, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for filing by the City Clerk and approved the actions taken by the Historic Preservation Board at its May 3, 2017 meeting, filed and documentary #170605C02.
- (3) Approving renewal of employment agreement for Construction Inspector II Plumbing Shelly McCarthy. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C03.
- (4) Approving temporary use permit for Mercedes-Benz South Orlando temporary vehicle storage lot within the Sabin Planned Development. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C04.
- (5) Approving Business Assistance Program Agreement between Mito Sushi & Grill, LLC and the City of Orlando 9430 Narcoossee Road. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C05.
- (6) Approving a final minor subdivision plat titled Lake Eola Heights. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C06.
- (7) Approving a final minor subdivision plat titled Concord Place a/k/a Fern Creek Townhomes. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C07.
- (8) Accepting meeting minutes and approving the recommended actions of the Creative Village Design Review Committee (CVDRC) May 9, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for filing by the City Clerk and approved the recommended actions of the Creative Village Design Review Committee at its May 9, 2017 meeting, filed and documentary #170605C08.
- (9) Approving a final major subdivision plat titled Barnes Minor Subdivision. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C09.

- (10) Approving Small Business Facade Program Agreement between Three Deland Plaza, LLC and the City of Orlando 2155 West Colonial Drive. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C10.
- (11) Approving employment agreement for Plans Examiner Provisional Plumbing Ralph Pizzuti. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C11.
- (12) Approving release and termination of Southern Gateway Developer's Agreement. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C12.
- (13) Accepting meeting minutes and approving the actions of the Southeast Town Design Review Committee (SETDRC) May 11, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for filing by the City Clerk and approved the actions taken by the Southeast Town Design Review Committee at its May 11, 2017 meeting, filed and documentary #170605C13.
- (14) Accepting meeting minutes and approving the actions of the Appearance Review Board (ARB) May 18, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for filing by the City Clerk and approved the actions taken by the Appearance Review Board at its May 18, 2017 meeting, filed and documentary #170605C14.
- (15) Approving employment agreement for Construction Inspector I Electrical Contract Mark Bedow. Approved, filed and documentary #170605C15.

(D) Families, Parks and Recreation

- (1) Approving John R. Mott Historical Marker at Lake Eola Park. Approved, filed and documentary #170605D01.
- (E) Fire no agenda items.
- (F) Housing no agenda items.

(G) Orlando Venues

(1) Accepting meeting minutes and approving the actions of the Harry P. Leu Gardens Board – April 26, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for filing by the City Clerk and approved the actions taken by the Harry P. Leu Gardens Board at its April 26, 2017 meeting, filed and documentary #170605G01.

(H) Police

- (1) Approving applying for FY 2017 Walmart Foundation Grant. Approved, filed and documentary #170605H01.
- (2) Approving the following permits: SPEC9599704, "Festival of the Sea", Orlando Festival Park, Sat. 6/17/17; SPEC5658885, "Central Florida Juneteenth and Black Music Celebration", John H. Jackson Community Center, Sat. 6/17/17; SPEC9079464, "Shoes4Kids USA Distribution and Concert", Lake Eola Park, Sat. 6/17/17; SPEC8596539, "Solutionary Peace Walk", Lake Eola Park, Sat. 6/17/17; SPEC5075390, "Walk a Mile in Her Shoes", 425 N. Orange Av. to Seneff Arts Plaza, Thur. 6/22/17; SPEC1810697, "Wall Street Plaza Yearly Block Parties", Wall Street Plaza between Orange Av./Court Av., 7/1/17-1/1/18; SPEC6974616, "Harry Buffalo Church Street Events", Church Street bet. Garland Av. and the railroad tracks, 7/1/17-1/1/18; SPEC6326228, "Church Street District Events", Church St. bet. Garland Av. and Orange Av., 7/1/17-1/1/18; SPEC0839749, "Independence Bash", Baldwin Park Village Center, Harbor Park, Mon. 7/3/17; SPEC5217002, "Fireworks at the Fountain, Lake Eola Park, Tues. 7/4/17. Approved, filed and documentary #170605H02.

(I) Public Works

- (1) Approving employment agreement with Tamara Reynolds as Public Works Project Coordinator. Approved, filed and documentary #170605101.
- (J) Transportation no agenda items.

(K) Other

- (1) Approving Third Amendment to the Embankment Funding Agreement between Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (GOAA) and All Aboard Florida-Operations, LLC related to Funding Drainage Work at the Midfield Cross Taxi-Way at Orlando International Airport. Approved, filed and documentary #170605K01.
- (2) Approving First Amendment to the Real Estate Purchase Agreement between Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (GOAA), City of Orlando and Tavistock Development Company related to the East Airfield Park Property. Approved, filed and documentary #170605K02.
- (3) Approving Release and Termination of Conservation Easement between Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, City of Orlando and Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (GOAA). Approved, filed and documentary #170605K03.
- (4) Approving First Amendment to the Real Estate Purchase, Land Development and Management Agreement between Greater Orlando Aviation Authority, City of Orlando and Tavistock Development Company related to the Poitras property. Approved, filed and documentary #170605K04.
- (5) Approving specific items approved by the Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (GOAA) at its May 17, 2017 meeting. Approved, filed and documentary #170605K05.

At approximately 2:49 P.M. Mayor Dyer recessed the City Council meeting and convened the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) meeting. Mayor Dyer called on CRA Executive Director Thomas Chatmon to present the following item.

4. Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA)

(1) Ranking and Contract Negotiations for Design-Build Services for CRA Parramore Residential Housing, RFP17-0247. Mayor Dyer called on CRA Executive Director Thomas Chatmon to introduce this item. A Request for Proposals (RFP) for the subject project was issued on March 21, 2017. Five firms responded and the Consultants' Qualifications Board certified all five firms on April 28, 2017. On May 3, 2017 the Advisory Committee shortlisted the top ranked three firms for formal interviews and oral presentations. After final presentations, on May 17, 2017 the Advisory Committee met to generate a ranking of the three firms as follows: 1. RL Burns, Inc.; 2. Votum Construction; 3. H.J. High Construction. The members of the Advisory Committee are CRA/DDB Executive Director Thomas Chatmon (Chair), CIP Division Manager Tom Connery, Housing and Community Development Director Oren Henry, CRA Advisory Board Member Terry Delahunty and Contract Compliance Investigator III, MBE Office Byron Raysor. Mr. Chatmon noted that RL Burns, Inc. has proposed utilizing 34% MBE subconsultant participation. CRA staff is requesting approval of the Advisory Committee's ranking and approval for the Chief Procurement Officer to proceed with negotiations with the top ranked firm, RL Burns, Inc., and authorize execution of an agreement in an amount not to exceed \$2 million; should negotiations with the top ranked firm prove unsuccessful, approve negotiations with successively ranked firms until a successful agreement is reached. Commissioner Regina I. Hill moved and Commissioner Patty Sheehan seconded a motion to approve the Advisory Committee's ranking, and the CRA voted unanimously to approve the ranking and contract negotiations, filed and documentary #170605401.

At approximately 2:51 P.M. Mayor Dyer adjourned the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) meeting and reconvened the City Council meeting.

- 5. Neighborhood Improvement District Board of Directors no agenda items.
- **6. OPEB Trust Board of Trustees** no agenda items.
- 7. New Business/Hearings no agenda items.
- 8. New Business
- (1) Electing Two (2) Mayors Pro-Tem for one year terms (July 2017 June 2018). Mayor Dyer opened the nominations for Mayor Pro Tem #1. Commissioner Samuel B. Ings moved to nominate Commissioner Patty Sheehan as Mayor Pro Tem #1 and Commissioner Regina I. Hill seconded the motion. Mayor Dyer asked if there were any further nominations. Hearing none, Mayor Dyer closed the nominations and City Council voted unanimously to elect Commissioner Patty Sheehan as Mayor Pro Tem #1.

Mayor Dyer opened the nominations for Mayor Pro Tem #2. Commissioner Patty Sheehan moved to nominate Commissioner Regina I. Hill as Mayor Pro Tem #2 and Commissioner Tony Ortiz seconded the motion. Mayor Dyer asked if there were any further nominations. Hearing none, Mayor Dyer closed the nominations and City Council voted 6-1 to elect Commissioner Regina I. Hill as Mayor Pro Tem #2, noting that Commissioner Samuel B. Ings voted "no." Filed and documentary #170605801.

- **9.** Hearings no agenda items.
- **10.** Hearings/Emergency Ordinances no agenda items.
- **11.** Hearings/Ordinances/1st Reading no agenda items.
- 12. Hearings/Ordinances/2nd Reading
- (1) City Clerk Denise Aldridge presented Ordinance No. 2017-25 adding medical cannabis dispensary location criteria and performance standards to Chapter 58 of the Land Development Code. Commissioner Patty Sheehan moved and Commissioner Robert F. Stuart seconded a motion that the ordinance be adopted on 2nd reading. Mayor Dyer opened the public hearing and no one appeared to testify. Mayor Dyer closed the public hearing and City Council voted unanimously to adopt the ordinance, filed and documentary #1706051201.
- (2) City Clerk Denise Aldridge presented Ordinance No. 2017-24 amending Chapter 58 of the Land Development Code to provide flexible development standards, subject to appearance review, for vacant, non-conforming one and two-family residential lots in the Parramore Heritage Overlay District; amending Chapter 67 of the Land Development Code to update procedures and alternative development standards for certified affordable housing projects. Commissioner Regina I. Hill moved and Commissioner Robert F. Stuart seconded a motion that the ordinance be adopted on 2nd reading. Mayor Dyer opened the public hearing. Shaquille Williams filed an appearance request form and yielded her time to Lawanna Gelzer. Lawanna Gelzer appeared and spoke regarding her concern with the word "flexibility." Mayor Dyer closed the public hearing and City Council voted unanimously to adopt the ordinance, filed and documentary #1706051202.

13. Ordinances/1st Reading

(1) City Clerk Denise Aldridge presented Ordinance No. 2017-26 annexing and assigning the Residential Low Intensity future land use designation to property located east of Lake Baldwin Lane, south of Rixey Street, west of Jamajo Boulevard and north of Hargrave Street (Lake Baldwin 5). Commissioner Robert F. Stuart moved and Commissioner Patty Sheehan seconded a motion that the ordinance be approved on 1st reading. Mayor Dyer asked if there was any public comment on this item and no one appeared to testify. City Council voted 6-0 to approve the ordinance, noting that Commissioner Jim Gray filed a Form 8B Memorandum of Voting Conflict and abstained from a vote on this item, a copy of which is filed as a supplemental paper to this meeting.

(2) City Clerk Denise Aldridge presented Ordinance No. 2017-28 designating certain land generally located south of Rixey Street, west of Jamajo Boulevard, east of Lake Baldwin Lane and north of Hargrove Street and Comprised of 0.96 acres of land, more or less, as Planned Development Zoning District with the Aircraft Noise Overlay District on the City's Official Zoning Maps (Lake Baldwin 5 PD, ZON2017-00003). Commissioner Robert F. Stuart moved and Commissioner Tony Ortiz seconded a motion that the ordinance be approved on 1st reading. Mayor Dyer asked if there was any public comment on this item and no one appeared to testify. City Council voted 6-0 to approve the ordinance, noting that Commissioner Jim Gray filed a Form 8B Memorandum of Voting Conflict and abstained from a vote on this item, a copy of which is filed as a supplemental paper to this meeting.

At approximately 3:13 P.M. Mayor Dyer welcomed UCF and Valencia College students attending today's meeting.

- (3) City Clerk Denise Aldridge presented Ordinance No. 2017-29 amending Chapter 55 of the City Code, "Vehicles for Hire" to eliminate regulation of transportation network companies. Commissioner Tony Ortiz moved and Commissioner Samuel B. Ings seconded a motion that the ordinance be approved on 1st reading. Mayor Dyer asked if there was any public comment on this item and no one appeared to testify. City Council voted unanimously to approve the ordinance.
- 14. Ordinances/2nd Reading no agenda items.
- 15. Appeals no agenda items.
- **16. Quasi-Judicial Hearings** no agenda items.
- 17. Unfinished Business no agenda items.
- 18. For Information Only
- (1) Meeting minutes of the Citizens' Police Review Board on April 5, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051801.
- (2) Meeting minutes of the Harry P. Leu Gardens Board on March 22, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051802.
- (3) Meeting minutes of the Citizens' Police Review Board on April 19, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051803.
- (4) Meeting minutes between Mayor Dyer and Commissioner Gray on May 9, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051804.
- (5) Meeting minutes of the Nominating Board on April 12, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051805.
- (6) Meeting minutes of the Public Art Advisory Board on May 9, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051806.
- (7) Meeting minutes of the General Employees' Pension Advisory Committee on April 28, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051807.
- (8) Meeting minutes of the Families, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board on April 18, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051808.

- (9) Meeting minutes of the Risk Management Committee on March 13, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051809.
- (10) Meeting minutes of the Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (GOAA) on April 19, 2017. Accepted meeting minutes for information only and for filing by the City Clerk, filed and documentary #1706051810.

At approximately 3:15 P.M. the official business of the City was concluded.

19. General Appearances

Amber Negron, on her own behalf, spoke in general about property taxes and pay raises.

Clayton Ferrera, on his own behalf, spoke with gratitude about Mayor Dyer's leadership on climate issues and policies.

Pending – no agenda items.

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before City Council on June 5, 2017 Mayor Dyer adjourned the meeting at 3:21 P.M.

Mayor Buddy Dyer	
City Clerk Denise Aldri	dge